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1. Name of Property

historic name Parranmore Historic District
other names/site number N/A

2. Location
dreet & number Area bounded by Orange, N. 8th, alley between Grape and ti/Ariot for publication
city, towmn Abilene Mulberry, and N. 7th Streets Avicinity
state Texas code TX county Taylor code 441 Zip code 79601
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Properly Number of Resources within Property
m private I Ibuilding(s) Contributing Noncontributing
J public-local [xi district 27 7 buildings
m public-State I Isite 0 sites
I | public-Federal A structure 0 structures
I 1 object 0 objects
2 7  Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed inthe National Register 0

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this

nomination request forjjetermination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
NationaP”gister of HisJeficPlaaes and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my;~inipn,*t"5>r«fpeny EWieets HIl doeXoptm”et the National Register criteria. Cl] See continuatjm sheet.

"Signature of certifying offici*r Date
State Historic Preservation Officer. Texas Historical Comm ssion
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does notmeet the National Register criteria. See continuation sheet.
Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification

I, hereby, certify that this property is: i/atlonal Beglstfi*
entered in the National Register.
|| See continuation sheet.
I ldetermined eligible for the National
Register. Q See continuation sheet,
n determined not eligible for the
National Register.

H removed from the National Register.
HH other, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from Instructions)
Donmestic: Single dwelling
Domestic: Multiple dwelling

7. Description
Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Prairie School
Bungal ow Craf t sman
20th Century Revivals

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic: Single dwelling
Domestic: Multiple dwelling
Commer ce/ trade: Business

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation concrete, wood

wadls brick, weatherboard
roof _ asphalt, ceramic tile
other N/A

The Parramore Higtoric Digtrict indudes a cohesve collection of 1920s and 1930s
dwdlings and encompesses parts of a 6-block area northwest of Abilene's centrd busness
district. Mog of the city'sterrain, including the historic district, is rdatively flat. Forming a
rectangle, the digtrict is bounded by North 8th Street on the north. Orange Siret on the eedt.
North 7th Street on the south, and the dley betweaen Grgpe and Mulberry dredts on the west.
The maority of houssswere built in the tradition of the Prairie School and bungaow
architecturd movements, popular locadly from the 1910s to the 1930s  With two exceptions.
Contributing properties are still used for resdentid purposes, and minima new construction
exigs within the digtrict's confines. A tota of 27 buildings, comprisng 79 percent of the
district, are classfied as Contributing dements Seven properties are consdered

Noncontributing.

Abilene, founded in 1881, sarves as county seet for Taylor County. The Cdlahan
Divide, the topographic boundary between the Brezos ad Colorado badns, arosses from esdt to
west through this centrd west Texas county. The landscgpe surrounding the community festures
gay prairies. Sevard amdl waeways flow within the community, athough none are
proximete to the district. Live o2k, post ogk, mexquite and cedar are ndtive to the areg; non-
naive vegeaion indudes pecan ad sycamore trees,

The tracks of the Texas ad Pecific Railroad, now part of the Missouri Pacific sysem,
bisect Abilene ad its centra busnessarea Abilene's commercid and busness center is
primarily north of the railroad tracks, and most of the oldest commercid buildings are in this part
of the city. Anaeaof mixed land use ad zoning, which indudes commercid buildings,
churches, parking lots, and a few isolated resdentid buildings, surrounds the central busness
district. Approximately four blocks northwest of the busness district, in what was initialy part
of Block 149 of the original town gite, this historic district marks the beginning of aresdentid

area concentrated  with early 20th century houses

The Parramore Higtoric Didtrict lies between Grgpe and Hickory dreets, two important
north-south thoroughfares now lined with gtores, officesand a few domedtic buildings. Thus,
aess immediady eest and west presant adidinctly commerad and contraging character to that
of this resdentid higtoric district. To the north and south of the district, on the other hand, are
rdatively intact resdentid neighborhoods that, despite maintaining cohesve dregtscgpes, contain
houses more modest in scale with less digtinctive detalling than thase wifiin thedistrict.

nn See continuation sheet
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Asistypica for much of pre-1945 Abilene, agrid sysem of dreats extendstiirough the
disrict and detached single family dwelingsprevail. The mgority of buildings face eest onto
primary north-south dreets, adthough a smdl number of dwellings face north or south on
ssoonday eed-wes dreets Severd houses in the district have delached garage/gpartments a the
rear of their lots; mog of these ancillary buildings edho the dwdlingsin detail, add to the overdl
qudity of the digtrict's higtoric fabric, and are conddered Contributing buildings. (Sse
Continuation Shedt 7-4.)

When property encompassng the district wes first devdoped in die early 20th century,
the Jamnes H. Paramore House, an 1885 manson, wes the only building in the immediae area
It sood a the southeest corner of the district and, & one time, marked the entrance to thisamal
subdivison. The housewas razed in 1959; the entire block now remans vecant. Historic
photographs reved that the building wes a sprawling, 2 1/2-dory frame dwelling with French
Second Empire detailing.  Traces of the old driveway and foundation, as well as landscgping
features such as iris beds and uniformly planted mesquite trees, mark the ste. Supposedly, some
architecturd dements were bulldozed into the besaat cavity & the ste. Anold cistern, once
covered, was recently discovered. A scattering of surface artifacts, such as glass ad caramic
fragments and kitchen utensils, have been observed & the Ste. Disruptive influences have bean
minima. No subsurface testing hes beaen atempted. An archasologicd investigation isstrongly

recommended if the property is devdoped in any capadity.

The district's earliest resdents built bungdow dwellings in the late 1910s dong Orange
Stret.  The bungdow istypicdly of frame congruction and was "bulk in duplicate, no doubt as
Soeculation property” (Beedey 1979:33). Numerous examples of this house type are throughout
the district and city. These bungdows have front, 9de or cross gable roofswith exposad rafters
a the eaves ad triangular brackets that sugget Stick Style design a the gable ends. Other less
prominent details, such as broad front doors and geometric designs in the upper seshes of double
hung windowsor screens, ae smilar to comparadble daments on Prairie School-influenced
houses It ssars therefore, that these features are less indicative of a specific Syle or type ad
ae more represantaive of a particular period when cartain architecturd tegtes and preferences
prevailed. These features could d< reflect the limited sdection available from lumberyards ad
building suppliers a thet time.

Of the three aubtypes of bungdow dwellings found within the district, the sde gable
verson isthe mod prevadent. Because the low gables goex pardlds the ground, emphagzing
the building's horizontd lines, these houses gopear veary linear when viewed from the front.
Often, agable front porch intersects the roof as a secondary componant inthe overdl form of
this housetype. Examples of dde geble dwellingsindude 1546 Paramore Avenue ad 768
Mulberry Street. The SdlersGuffey House a 760 Orange Strest, a Sde gable bungdow, isthe
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mod illugtrative of this subtype within the district and is one of die best examples indie city.
Although it is not goparant from the front facede, diis house is one of the largest in die didtrict.

The other subtypes, cross and front gable bungdows, are less common. The house a
772 Mulberry Sireet is particularly noteworthy for its broad, 1-ay porch that extends across the
entire length of the house ad is st within a front-projectinggable. The buildings & 1541 North
8th, 1542 North 7th and 702 Mulberry dregts have complex roof sydems widi gables that aoss
a right angles

All subtypes of bungdow resdences have modest omamentation. Earlier versons,
however, are often larger and more daboratdy detalled. The Sdlers-Guffey House is an indance
of an eaxrlier verson with grester decoraive embdlishments. The cagt gone coping on the solid
baudrade, columns and porch piers, ad the course shingling inthe gable ends are particularly
noteworthy.

The focal point of the Paramore Historic Didtrict is Abilene's best and mog cohesve
group of Prairie School-influenced houses dong die west 9de of the 700 block of Beach Street.
Each 2-gory dweling occupies a large lot that comprises gpproximeately one-quarter of ablock.
Uniform gting and smilar masing and formsreinforce die visud unity of thesehouses  All but
one have brown- or buff-colored brick; the exception, 704 Besch Street, hes white smoooed
wadls. Each househes addached 1-doy garage/gpatment dso with Prairie School-styled
demats.  Other noteworthy examples of smilarly detailed resdences in the district have hipped
roofswith broad extended eaves ad long, linear, 1-gory porches with large, squared brick
upports. Examples indude die Clifton M. Cddwell House a& 790 Orange Street and die Eugane
V. ad Sue Sles House & 760 Mulberry Street; both dosdy resemble the dwelings on Besch
Stredt.

During the early 20th century, only a smdl number of architecturd syles were popular
locdly. By die late 1920s and continuing through the 1930s, stylistic preferences in domedic
architecture diverged and a variety of forms and ornamentation became accepteble. Two other
architectura expressons that exerted minimad  influence on desgn within the district were the
Colonid ad Tudor Revivd styles While none are pure examples, afew housesinthe district
exhibit some characteridics assodated with these Syles For example, the gambrd -roofed
dwelling & 1547 Paramore Avenue exhibits the influences of Colonid Reviva desgn
(McAlester and McAleger 1986:322). Ore lot inthe district remained vecant until 1941 when
the 2-gory duplex a 736-42 Mulberry Strest was condructed. 1t defles classfication into any
one architecturd yle or type, but its srong verticd empheds, round arched openings ad brick
venexr wdls are suggedive of Tudor Revivd sylisic dements
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Only saven properties within the district boundaries are consdered Noncontributing. The
2-gory houss a 1530 Paramore Avenue was moved to its presant location in 1927. Severdy
dtered, the house exhibits some features, including front entrance detals and ahipped roof,
uggedtive of hybrid resdences built earlier inthe 20th century theat incorporate dements of
Victorian era ad Clasicd Revivd dyles. The dwdling & 1442 Paramore Avenue hes
experienced recent, unsympathetic dteraions that detract from the historic fabric of the district.
The only indances of demoalition are the JanesH. Paramore House that was & Orange ad
North 7th dreets now avacant block, and a frame housetiiat wasjust eest of 1542 North 7th
Stret, replaced with another frame dwelling thet is consdered Noncontributing.  Another house,
which bumed, was a the southeest corner of Besch and North 8di dredts it was replaced aoout
1985 with a 2-unit gpartment complex and agarage. A amdl frame garage a the rear of 1547
Parramore Avenue is dso Noncontributing.

This collection of buildings retains all agpedts of integrity: location, design, setting,
materids, workmanship, feeling, and assodiaion. They have been well maintained and sand
virtually undtered snce their origina constmction. One dwelling is now usad as abeauty
parlor, while another hes bean converted into offices. Reoant rehabilitallon effortson the latter
building have preserved significant interior feamres, such as the Saircase, mantes, and wood
trim.
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Phato Log:

1542 Nortii 7di Street

Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogreph by the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
South facade, camnera facing north

Photogrgph 1 of 12

1441-1443 North 8di Stregt

Paramore Historic District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by the Abilene Presarvation Leegue
October 1988

Negative with the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
North facades, camaa facing south southwest
Photogreph 2 of 12

West dde of 700 block of Besch Street
Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by the Abilene Presarvation Leegue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
Camga facing northwest

Photograph 3 of 12

Goodwin Seers House

726 Besth Street

Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvatiion Lesgue
Ead facade, camaa facing northwest
Photogreph 4 of 12
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Lewis J. AckersHouse

772 Beth Stret

Paramore Historic District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogreph by the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
October 1988

Negative with the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
Southeast comer, cameaa facing northwest
Photogrgph 5 of 12

Thomes R. Spenocar House

736-742 Mulberry Street

Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
Ead facade, camga facing wes

Photogrgph 6 of 12

Bugae V. ad Se Sdles House

760 Mulberry

Parramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by die Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
Ead facade, camaa facing wes

Photogreph 7 of 12

768 Mulberry Stregt

Paramore Historic District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogreph by the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue
Ead facade, canga facing wet

Photogrgph 8 of 12

oue Aptmtt HO. 1014711
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Clifton M. Cddwdl House

790 Orange Sret

Paramore Historic District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by the Abilene Presarvation Leegue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Preservation Lesgue
Ead facade, canga facing west southwest
Photogrgph 9 of 12

Garagegoatmat a 790 Orange Strect
Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogr~h by the Abilene Presarvation Lesgue
October 1983

Negative with the Abilene Presarvation Leegue
Ead facade, camga facing west northwest
Hiotograph 10 of 12

1518 Paramore Avenue (garage/gpatment behind 750 Besch Stredt)
Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by the Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue

October 1983

Negative with die Abilene Presarvatiion Leegue

South facade, camnera facing north

Photogrgph 11 of 12

Ste of demalished James H. Paramore House (now vacant |ot)
Paramore Higtoric District

Abilene, Taylor County, Texas

Photogrgph by die Abilene Presarvation Leegue

October 1983

Negative with die Abilene Presarvation Leegue

Camga facing southeedt

Photogrgph 12 of 12
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8. Statement of Significance
Certifying official has considered tfie significance of this property in relation to other properties:

| | nationally d) statewide [x] locally
Applicable National Register Criteria \x}C 1 ID
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) CHA \Z]C |Z]D « £ EUGN/A
Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture 1917- 1941 NA

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A Unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

The Paramore Higtoric Didtrict is a remarkably intact historic neighborhood that indudes
a high concentration of Prairie School- ad bungdow-inspired houses  The didtrict is named for
JamesH. Parramore, a prominent loca busnessman who once owned dl the property within the
disrict. The Paramore Higtoric Didtrict is dgnificant & the locd level between 1917 and 1941
in the areaof Architecture, and medts Criterion C a Abilengsfinest collecfion of early 20th
century houses.

JamesH. Paramore was born in Early County, Georgia, in 1840 and moved with his
parents to Gonzales, Texas in 1849. Following diginguished sarvice in the Confederate Army,
where he roseto the rank of cgptain with Terry's Texas Rangars, Paramore returned to
Gonzdes He maried Mary Jane Goodsen ad they raised a family that eventudly indluded four
sonsad diree daughters. While in Gonzales, the family farmed cotton and raised cattle, being
paticularly successful & the latter. 1ll hedth forced Paramoreto depart from the coastd
prairies of thelr homesead ad take his family, upon the advice of a physician, to the drier
dimate of Wes Texas They abandoned their farming activities add moved their herdsto
Runnds County, Texas, in May 1879. They remaned there until October 1831 when they
rdocated to the newly founded community of Abilene.

Parramore acquired property in 1831 that included the present historic district. At that
time, the land comprised Block 149 of die origind town dte ad was ane of a sries of large
outlots that surrounded die city. In 1885 he built one of the first ad largest resdencesin the
community, and it quickly became an important locd landmark, a symbol of his persona suooess
and prominence in the community. French Ssoond Empire detalling heavily influenced the
Victorian era dweling that was featured prominently in various promotiond brochures ad
booklets distributed to encourage Abilene's growth.

Parramore owned vag amounts of land in west Texas, New Mexico, and Arizona. In
addition to bang a prominent Abilene citizen, he was an important benefactor of Smmons
Coallege, forerunner of Hardin-Smmons University. A dormitor>' on its campusis named in his
honor.

nriSee continuation sheet



9. Major Bibliographical References

See Continuation Sheet 9-1.

Previous documentation onfile (NPS): N/A

I I preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67)
has been requested

D previously listed in the National Register

A previously determined eligible by the National Register
| designated a National Historic Landmark

I Irecorded by Historic American Buildings
Survey #

I Irecorded by Historic American Engineering
Record #

10. Geographical Data
Acesge d propaty  approx. 13 acres

UTM References

A LIIAJ 1413iQl4i6iQl [3i51911 1?i4inl
Zone Easting Northing

Clli4l 1413i0l4i4i0l 13i519ill0i6iO0l

Verbal Boundary Description

See Continuation Sheet 10-1.

Boundary Justification

See Continuation Sheets 10-1 and 10-2.

11. Form Prepared By

nn See continuation sheet

Primary location of additional data:
[x1 State historic preservation office
I | Other State agency
A Federal agency
[x1 Local government
I University
e Other
Specify repository:
Texas Historical Conmm ssion, An.gfin
Abilene Preservation League, Abilene

B LilAJ 1413i0l7i6inl
Zone Easting

I 3i SI9iil ?i9iol
Northing

D LUAJ 1413inl7i4inl 13i519il10i4i0l

| | See continuation sheet

fx| See continuation sheet

fx| See continuation sheet

nameAile David Moore (with Amy E. Dase, THC Historian)

organizdion Hardy-Heck-Moore
street & number 2112 Ri 0 Grande
city or town Austin

dae July 1989: November 1990
.telephone 512/478-8014
state Texas zipcode 78705
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Inventory of properties by ste number:

Name (where gpplicable), address ste number, category (Contributing or Noncontributing and
number of resources), date of congtruction, architecmrd style, photograph number (where
gpplicable)

Description

Saemat of sgnificance

1441-1443 North 8di Street, Ste A-1, Nonconu-ibuting (3), ¢. 1985, no style. Photograph 2

Two, 2-gory gpatment buildings of frame congruction with wood siding; gableroofs
with composgition shingles. Outbuilding: open garage is southeest of these buildings.

These diree buildings are architecturdly and historicaly incompatible with other buildings
in diedigtrict.

Sdlers-Guffey House, 760 Orange Street, Site 119, Contributing (2), 1917, Bungdow

1 1/2-gary framedwdling with exterior brick walls; low pitched crossad gable roof with
compogtion shingles exposad rafter ends and sick brackets, wood sash windows with 971 lights;
broad, sngle door primary (eest) entrance st widiin 14y porch with gable roof supported by
massve, squared, brick columns with cagt gone and Gresk crossshgped cgps gable dormer &
south end of front devation; cast gone coping; secondary entrances on north and south ends;,
ssoondary  geble porch on south elevation; all gable endswith daggered shingling.  Outbuilding:
1-doy garage/gpatment to the rear d<o digolays bungdow detailing; because it dosdy
resambles the main house and hes noteworthy architectura festures, this outbuilding is
Contributing.

This houseis die ddest extant building inthe district and is among the city's finest
examples of bungdow design. 1t was built in 1917 for Eugere V. ad Qe Sdles. Se SHles
weas a daughter of JamesH. Paramore and acquired the property after Parramores degth when
his lands were partitioned among his heirs. The Sdlers lived inthe houseundl 1919 when Ira
and l|da Guffee becamethe ownars  Guffeewss a vice presdent a die Abilene Sate Bark (a5
wes his neighbor Bascom Miller & 750 Besch Street). During die 1930s the bank experienced
financid difficulties and Guffeeweas forced to give up the house  I1n 1933 Fred Schroeder
purchesad die property and, according to city directories, was chief enginer and a vice presdent
of Wes Texas Utilities Company. The Sdroedas were well known as hospitable hosts ad
provided a "home away from home' for locdly gationed soldiers during World War 11, In
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addition, numerous cdebrities and public figures, such as Rita Hayworth, reportedly sayed inthe
housewhile visiting Abilene. Mrs. James A. Wolfe acquired the house and he maintained bodi
his resdence and chiropractic officesin the building. They resded in the houseuntil 1975.

Clifton M. Cddwdl House, 790 Orange Stret, Site 120, Contributing (2), Prairie Schoal,
Photogrgphs 9 ad 10

2-gory frame dwelling with exterior brick walls; hipped roof with compostion shingles,
broad, overhanging eaves wood sash windows with vertical muntins, sngle door (beveed glass)
primary entrance with transom and sddights st in 3-bay porch with brick supports and bacony
above on primary (eedt) devation; cag gone continuous sill and coping; interior brick chimney
offset from center; porte cochere with sscond sory bedroom on south eevation; sreet aooess to
porte cochere blocked. Outbuilding: 2-gory garage/gpartment with detailing smilar to main
house partidly burned in 1960s some modem windows ingdaled; because it dosdy resambles
the main house and hes noteworthy architectura features, this outbuilding is Contributing.

This dwelling, with its broad eaves and low pitched roof, exhibits a srong horizonta
aemphads ad is among the city's finest examples of Prairie Schoal-inspired architecture, builtin
1919 for Eugare V. Sdlers, repongble for the congruction of die dwelling next door a 760
Orange Street.  In 1921 he and his wife s0ld this house (790 Orange Street) to W.C. Goodwin
who subsequantly conveyed the property to Clifton M. Cadwell, alavyer and oil men from
Brackenridge. For the next 42 years the house remained inthe Cddwdl family. Cadwel wes a
University of Texas Law Schod graduate and later sarved as county attorney, county judge, ad
digtrict judge. He subbsequently became involved in the oil busness and amessed a greet fortune.
He moved to Abilene in 1922 and quickly assumed a position as one of the community's mogt
influential and regpected citizens.

Lewis J. Ackers House, 772 Beeth Stredt, Site 126, Contributing (2), 1922, Prairie Schooal,
Phatograph 5

2-gory frame dwelling with exterior brick walls; low pitched hipped roof with
compogtion shingles, broad, overhanging eaves, wood sash windows, upper seshes with
geometric design; single door entrance with transom and Sddights st in 3-bay porch with hipped
roof on primary (eest) devation; brick columns with tapered brick capitds support the porch;
interior brick chimney offset from center; low pitched hipped dormer on east devafion; porte
cochere on south devation with brick supportsidentica to those on front porch; cegt donetrim
on diese supports as well as on the continuous silIs of die sscond floor. Outbuilding: 1-gory
brick garage/gpartment dands to southwest; windows, eaves and masonry work amilar to man
house because it dosdy resambles the main house and hes noteworthy architecturd fegtures, this
outbuilding is Contributing.
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Locd builder Roy Boatwright erected this house in 1922, and it dands as one of
Abilené's premier examples of Prairie School-ingpired resdentid architecture.  Its origina owner
was Bugene V. Sdlers but widiin a few months after its completion, LewisJ. Ackers, a
prominent West Texas rancher, purchased the dwelling.  Ackers, who was d<0 vice presdant of
a locd publishing venture, the Victor Publishers Company, resded in the house until 1960 when
he and his wife Sybil moved to a new dwelling on Elmwood Drive.

Miller-Radford House, 750 Beach Srest and 1518 Paramore Avenue, Ste 127, Contributing (2),
1926, Prairie School, Photograph 11

2-gory frame dwelling with exterior brick walls; low pitched hipped roof with
compogtion shingles, broad, overhanging eaveswith pared consoles wood sseh windows with
6/1 lights;, sngle door entrance with transom and sddights st in 14oay porch on primary (eest)
devation; brick comer piers with narrow, round arched opening; interior brick chimney offset
from center; sscondary entrance on outh devation that gpans onto porte cochere to front porch;
wood baludrade above front porch suggests ue & abaoony dthough a doorway does not open
onto balcony; smdl hipped dormer on eedt devation. Outbuilding: 2-gory garage/gpatment, like
the man house, hes buff brick walls; because it dosdy ressmbles die man house ad hes
noteworthy architecturd features, diis outbuilding is Contributing.

Built in 1926 for Basoom Miller, this houseis one of four Prairie School-ingoired houses
that line the west 3de of the 700 block of Besch Stret. Its original owner, Bascom Miller, wes
avice presdat of die Abilene Sate Bank. He retained the title to die house until financia
problems a the bank forced himto sdl the property to busness men Ome E. Radford in 1933,
Radford wes presdent of J.M. Radford Grocary Company, awholesde grocery concern that wes
prominent throughout the region. Radford dso was vice presdent of the Abilene Building and
Loan Asodaion and was presdent of die Gold Bond Casket Company.  Victor L. Shiflet

acquired die property in 1956.

Oscar Rose House, 1442 Paramore Avenue, Ste 128, Noncontributing (1), Contributing (1),
1941, Soanish Colonid Revivd

1-dory frame dweling with exterior brick walls, gable roof widi compostion shingles
box eaves metd casament windows with four lights and horizonta muntins;, sngle door entrance
s in 3-+bay porch widi ghed roof supported by square pods on primary (south) eevation; two,
interior brick chimneys. Outbuilding: 1-gory garage/gpartment with detalls smilar to main
hous= this ancillary building retains its origind tile roof; dthough die main houseis
Noncontributing, this outbuilding remains undtered and is Contributing.

Contractor Oscar Rose built this housein 1941 ad lived init until his desth in1971.
His widow 4till lived indie building as of 1989. Raseweas an active and successful busnessman
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ad served on die Parks and Recregtion Board for more then 17 years.  1n 1968 Fair Pak wes
renamed in his honor. Although the house is a unique examnple of Spanisingoired architecture
in the didtrict, the remova of the red tile roof detracts from its historic integrity and istherefore
conddered Noncontributing. The detached garage/gpartment, however, dtill retans itstile roof
and provides avivid reminder of the main housgs higtoric gopearance

Goodwin-Sears House, 726 Besth Street, Ste 129, Contributing (2), 1922/1927, Prairie School,
Photograph 4

2-gory framedwdling widi exterior brick walls, gable roof with compaodtion shingles,
broad, overhanging eaves wood sseh windows in groups of three, upper sssheswith geometric
detalling; dangle door entrance widi bevded dlass in transom and sddights set in 2-bay porch
with hipped roof supported by brick columns with tagpered brick capitds on primary (ees)
devation; exterior brick chimney a north gable end; porte cochere on south devation with
detalling smilar to that of the front porch. Outbuilding; 1-dory brick garage/gpartment with
detalling smilar to the main houss because it dosdy resembles the main house and hes
noteworthy architectura feetures, this outbuilding is Contributing.

Origmdlly, this house wes a 1-gory building; a sscond floor was added afew years after
itsinitiadl congmction. Today it gands in good condition and is an outdanding loca
interpretation of a Prairie School-inspired dwelling.  Built in 1922 for W.C. Goodwin, a
prominent rancher, five years laer Arth Sears, desoandant of an early pioneer family of West
Texas purchesed the house Searsand his wife, Mae, had saven children and are reported to
have added the ssoond floor soon after they acquired the property. Searsdied in 1929 and his
wife resded inthe house until 1945 when locd busnessmen Alton J. Willingham bought the
dwelling; Willingham and his wife till lived inthe house as of 1989.

Edward W. and Mary Doudiit House, 704 Besth Strest, Site 130, Contributing (2), 1920-21,
Prairie School, Photograph 3

2-dory framedwedling widi succo exterior walls, hipped roof with broad, overhanging
eaves with pared consoles wood sash windows, most grouped intwos or direes, widi 6/1 lights;
dngle door entrance with dddights st in 3tey porch with hipped roof supported by large, brick
piers on primary (eest) devation; interior brick chimney offset from center; porte cochere on
south elevation with detailing smilar to that of front porch; hipped dormer on eest devation.
Outbuilding: 1-dory ducco garage/gpatmeant widi detailing and exterior finish smilar to that of
the main house because it dosdy resambles die main house and ha noteworthy architectura
features, this outbuilding is Contributing.

This dwelling is one of the district's best examples of a Prairie School-ingpired desgn ad
Is among the city's most noteworthy illustrationsof this style. Edward and Mary Douthit were
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married in 1901; de was one of James H. Paramores daughters The Doudiits first lived in
Howard County, where, with Parramores assgance, they learned the ranching busness They
retumed to Abilene after Parramores deasth and congmcted this 1920-21 house on land that
Mary recaved from her father's will in 1917. They resded here for the rest of therr lives.
Besdes working as a successful rancher, Edward Douthits wes co-owner of the Anderson and
Douthit Book and Music Store ad dlowed a amdl private library, the foremnner of the city's
public library, to operate out of the rear of the gore. May Doudiit died in 1964 and Edwad
Doudiit died in 1970.

702 Mulberry Street, Ste 138, Contributing (1), 1920, Bungdow

1-gory framedwdling with exterior ducco walls; gable roof with composition shingles,
exposd rafter ends and gick brackets, paired wood sesh windowswith 3/1 lights, upper ssehes
with vertica muntins, Sngle door primary entrance st in 2-bay porch with aross geble roof
upported by large, ducco podson primary (eest) devation; exterior brick chimney on soudi
eevation.

This bungdow is bdieved to have bean built in 1920 for Elijah Guffee, axd ance that
time, hes had saverd owners and occupants including Arther W. Bafanz of Bafanz Congtmction
Company, J. Duran Pary and John Smpson. By 1937, Adam N. Wimberly owned the building
ad the house remained indiat family until the late 1950s  The house combines demants of
double gable and aross gable bundadows, two important subtypes of this popular houseform.

1542 Nordi 7di Street, Ste 139, Contributing (1), Noncontributing (1), 1924, Bungdow,
Photogrgph 1

1-gory framebungdow with 117/121 wood siding; gable roof with compaogtion shingles,
exposd rafter ends, and stick brackets, wood sseh windows have vertical muntins in upper
sshesand A-B-A fenedration pattern is in window bays of main facade, a sngle door entrance
Is st widiin a 14ey porch widi gable roof braced by tapered box supports thet rest on brick
piers on the primary (south) devation. Outbuilding: a amdl frame house gands just eedt of the
main house because of its recant date of congtmction it is Noncontributing.

This is one of the best examples of abungdow inthe digtrict and it remans virtualy
undtered. Unlike others in the digtrict, this house hes had numerous owners over the yearsad
no pre-1945 owner lived inthe house for more than five yeers  The earliest known occupants
were T. Cater Rogers ad hiswife Ena He wes apharmeads & McLemore-BassDmg
Company. Since the 1930s part of the building hes bean usad as abeauty shop.
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Thomes E. Roberts House, 718 Mulberry Street, Ste 140, Contributing (2), 1922, Bungaow

1-gory frame dwelling with 117/121 sding; massve gable roof with compogtion
shingles wood saeh windows, Sngle door entrance st in amdl 14ay porch with pared wood
pogson primary (eest) devation; porte cochere on south devation with tapered box columns that
res on brick piers and cagt done bases windows on front have 48 smdl panesthat are probably
replacements.  Outbuilding: 2-gory frame garage/gpartment dandsto the west of the main house:
like the main house, this ancillary building hes frame congmction with 117/121 sding; displays
bungdow detalls quch as exposad rafter ends and gick brackets, because it dosdy ressmblesthe
main house and hes noteworthy architecturd features, this outbuilding is Contributing.

This houseweas built in 1922 for Thomas E. Roberts  City directories note that whilehe
owned the dwelling, Roberts was employed as a bookkesper with the Texas Mill and Elevator
Compay and later worked for die Missouri Life Insurance Company and Gengd American Life
Insurance Company. He resded indie house until his gopointment as the first superintendent of
die Hendrick Home for Children in 1939. His sepfather, Thomas R. Spencer, lived in the house
in 1939. William W. Haynes purchasad die property in 1941. Haynes was maneger of
Universal Motors and lived in the house until the 1960s

Thomes R. Soenocar House, 736-742 Mulberry Street, Ste 141, Contributing (1), 1941, Prairie
School, Phatogrgph 6

2-gory frame duplex with exterior brick walls; belcast hipped roof with wood shingles,
box eaves wood sseh windows with 4/1 lights, upper sseheswith vertical muntins, two, sngle
door entrances, one for eech duplex; door & 736 faces south while door a 742 faceseedt; 14y
porch with flat roof and balcony on south devation sarves 736; round arch openings in this
porch; exterior brick chimney on est devation; smdl bacony above round-arched opening of the
north (742 Mulberry) sde of duplex; metd railings on both baconies

This building is the digtrict's lone example of a duplex dwelling. Despite its congmction
in 1941, it diglays saverd architecmrd feamresthat are amilar to the Prairie School-inspired
district's dwellings built inthe 1920s  W.S. Wedley is bdieved to have built die building for
Thomas R. Soenc in 1941, Soenoar was a hardware sdlesman who moved to Abilene in 1906.
He lived in diis house until his degth in 1956.

Fances B. Olds, House, 1547 Paramore Avenue, Site 143, Contributing (1), Noncontributing
(2), c. 1924-25, Colonid Revivd

2-gory frame dwelling with exterior brick walls;, gambrel roof with wood shingles, wood
sseh windows with 6/6 lights; sngle door entrance st under a semicircular arch st in a3-bay,
1-gory porch with hipped roof on primary (west) devation; squared brick outer supportsad
squared wood supports on inner bays; exterior brick chimney on west devation; shed dormer
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with gmnooo facing and 6/6 windows on front; pent roof a bese of gable on front. Outbuilding:
andl frame garage a rear of lot that is Noncontributing.

This dwelling, built in 1924 or 1925 for Frances B. Olds, is arare locd example of a
Colonid Reviva resdence ad is die only such building inthe district. Mrs. Olds resded inthe
house until the 1950s. Her son F.C. "Pae’ Olds wes an architect/engineer who worked for locd
achitect David Cadle.  Olds ganed consderade recognition as a desgner of Art Moderme
buildings. Hisresdence & 1041 Elmwood is a noteworthy illustration of the style.

Geaorge Cdlihan House, 1533 Paramore Avenue, Site 144, Contributing (2), ¢. 1937, Tudor
Revivd

2-gory frame dwelling with exterior brick walls; dipped gable roof with compostion
shingles, double hung windows, angle door primary entrance under a ssgmentd arch; porch hes
been endosed with louvered windows, exterior brick chimney on west devation. Outbuilding: 1
1/2-gory garage/gpatment widi dipped gable roof ad detals and congmction smilar to the
man houss becaue it dosdy resambles the main house ad hes noteworthy architectura
features, this outbuilding is Contributing.

George Cdlihan built this house soon after he purchasad the property  on Sgptember 4,
1937. Cdlihan was a contrector involved in drilling oil wells during Abilene's and Wes Texas
oil boom of the 1930s David and Grace Morris purchased the housein 1954. Although it hes
been dtered, it retains enough of its historic fabricto be Contributing. It exhibitsdetailing
assodated with die Tudor Revivd gyle dia ganed popularity during the late 1920sand 1930s

Finberg-Allison, 1530 Parramore Avenue, Site 145, Noncontributing (1), ¢. 1905/1927, Other:
vernecular

2-gory frame dwelling widi exterior succo walls; hipped roof with composgtion shingles,
wood seeh windows, somewith geometric desgns, somewidi modern metas sashes sngle door
entrance with transom and sddights st in 4-bay porch widi hipped roof supported by 2-gtory
box columns on primary (south) devation; a moden diding glass door on ssoond floor; detalls
and form of house suggests atrangtion from asymmericd Victorian ea to early 20th-century
eclecticigm.

This house origindly good & 1442 North 3rd Strest. U.S. Hamilton moved it in 1927
for George and Hattie Finberg. For much of the 1920s and 19305 the house wes used asfor
rentd purposes, its most sgniflcant tenant was Thomes L. Blanton. Whileresding in die houss,
Blanton wes a mambar of alocdly prominent law firm and served in the United Siates Congress.
On January 1, 1934,1.L. Allison, Dean of the Music Depatment a Sunmons College, acquired
die house ad lived there for three years. Because of dteraions, die house in its presat daeis
Noncontributing.
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Graves and Ellen Cayce House, 1546 Parramore Avenue, Ste 146, Contributing (1), 1922,
Bungdow

1-dory frame dweling with weatherboard siding; geble roof with compodtion shingles
dick brackets, wood sseh windows, single door entrance with sddights st in 3-bay porch on
primary (south) eevation; tapered box supports that extend to bese of porch; brick chimneys,
two, dipped gaes on primary facade; trim around front entrance shows a srong influence of
Craftaman style; vertica lightsin Sddights and door.

This bungadow was erected in 1922 for Graves ad Ellen Cayce. Aldiough he died in
1928, Cayce's widow remained inthe house until 1950. After her desth the following year, the
land was conveyed to her four children and they s0ld die resdence to Ada Crofton for $17,500
on November 3, 1951.

Eugae V. and Sie Sdleas House, 760 Mulberry Strest and 1626 Parramore Avenue, Ste 147,
Contributing (2), 1922, Prairie School, Photograph 7

1-gory frame dweling with exterior brick walls; hipped roof; broad, box eaveson both
levels, wood sseh windows, upper sssheswidi geometric design; single door entrance with
transom and Sddights st in 3-bay porch with hipped roof supported by squared, brick columns
with tgpered brick capitas on primary (esst) eevation; two, brick chimneys. (Xitbuilding: 2-
dory garage/gpatment with detailing smilar to diat of the main house porte cochere on south
devation with detalling smilar to that of the front porch; tripartite transom & front entrance
comprised of small, narrow lights, most windows are grouped in pairs, because it dosdy
resambles the main house and hes noteworthy architecmra feamres, this outbuilding is
Contributing.

This outstanding locd example of Prairie School-ingpired architecmre was built in 1922
for Eugane V. Sdlers, an executive with West Texas Utilities Company. Aldiough Sdlers ad
hiswife Sue, adaughter of James H. Parramore, built other housesin the neighborhood, this
dwelling is known locdly as the Sdlers House and hes the srongest assoadions with the Sdlers
family. 1n 1937 David Huddelston, a rancher, bought the house

768 Mulberry Street, Ste 149, Contributing (1), 1923, Bungdow, Photograph 8

1-goy framedwdling with 117/121 sding; dipped gable roof with compostion shingles;
exposad rafter ends, stick brackets, wood sash windows with 4/1 lights, upper sashes with
verticd muntins, angle door entrance s8¢ m 1-ey porch with gable roof supported by pared
Doric columns on primary (eest) elevation; brick piers & each ed of porch with concrete urns
crowning eech pier; brick chimney a north devation; Paladian-like configuration on porch, but a
sgmentd rather than round archway.
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This housewas built in 1923 for Finley Homes who owned the adjoining lot (772
Mulberry). The 1926 city directory, the earlies known directory that indudes property indie
digtrict, lists Hugh Horn as the occupant of this house Two years later. Homes lived & diis
address 1n 1931 Emmet E. Jones of J & L Dye Works, is ligted as arenter. He was the furd
of sevard renters who lived in the house during the next 40 years.

Finley and Josgphine Holmes House, 772 Mulberry Street, Ste 150, Contributing (1), ¢. 1923,
Bungdow

1-dory frame dweling with drop sding; geble roof with compostion shingles, expossd
rafter ends and gtick brackets wood sseh windows, multiple light over sngle light ssehes angle
door entrance s in 1ty porch with gable roof on primary (eest) eevation; brick supports,
porte cochere on soudi devation; agbestos shingles in gable end on front (south) devation; brick
porch piers mark entrance and provide a bese for concrete urns.

Finley Hdmes purchased this ad the adjoining lot (768 Mulberry Street) in 1923 and
reportedly built housss on each parcd.  Although Holmes, who operated the Holmes & Son
Grocary Store a 1146 North 2nd Street, lived in both houses & various times, he and his family
lived inthis housefor al but five of the next 47 years, according to city directories. Thishouse
exhibits feamres assodaed with bungaow desgn and is one of the better examples of this Syle
in thedigtrict.

Michadl P. Brady House, 1541 North 8di Street, Ste 151, Contributing (1), ¢. 1920, Bungdow

1-dory frame dweling with amooo exterior walls;, cross gable roof with compaogtion
shingles exposed rafter ends and gick brackets, wood seeh windows with 4/1 and 6/1 lights;
dngle door entrance on main facade st in 2-bay porch with gable roof supported by tgpered box
columns on smooo piers on primary (north) eevation; interior brick chimney offset from center;
shingled gableends

Degpite minor dterations, this house retains enough of its historic fabricto be
Contributing. Better and less dtered examples survive in die district; however, this houseis
illustrative of bungaow-ingpired architecmre, popular diroughout Abilene, and is noteworthy for
its 2-bay front porch with gadle roof From the 1920sthrough the 1950s the house wes
assodated with die Brady family ad it possbly was built for Michad P. Brady who owned ad
occupied the house as early as 1926. City directories do not indicate his vocation.
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Parramore died in July 1917 and hiswill sipulated that his saven surviving children
divide his persond property ad ranch land. Block 149, which induded his resdence, was
partitioned into 9x equaly Szed blocks and conveyed to sx of his children: H.C. Paramore,
Eunice Parramore, John N. Paramore, Sie P. Sdlers, Mary P. Douthit and James H.
Paramore, Jr. (Taylor County Probate Records L:393). Property that indudes Block 149 hes
ance bean renamad the Parramore Subdivison in all legd ad tax records.

Partitioning the land became the critica factor inthe history of the property and
bssouent devdopment of the Parramore neighborhood.  |n accordence with Parramorés will,
the family homesteed was conveyed to his daughter Eunice, who never married.  The remaning
blocks, undevdoped when the property was divided in 1917, soon became the soane of
devdopmeant activity. The presant historic district comprises all but a smdl portion of the Sx
original blocks conveyed to Parramores hairs,

Asdde from the Paramore Housg, the first dweling built inthe subdivison was the 1 1/2-
gory, brick vener bungdow a 760 Orange Siret.  Its origind owners were Parramores
daughter and son-in-law. Sue and Eugerne V. Sdlers, who dso condmcted three other houses in
the district. The only other Parramore descendant to build in the neighborhood wes Mary
Douthit who, widi her husband Edward W. Doudiit, erected a 2-gory framehouse a 704 Besth
Srest. Therest of the land was sold for speculaive purposes. 1N some cases the land wes
patitioned into smdler lots changing die physicd character of the area For example, the houses
ad lots dong Orange, Beath and, to a lessr extent. Mulberry dregts are rdatively large, while
those dong Paramore Avenue, North 7th and North 8th dreats are smdler. Nonehdess this
area became a showcase in the community and some of the town's more prominent ditizens dhose
to build or move to existing housss in the areq, including Clifton M. Cadwell, Basoom Miller,
Arth Searsand Lewis JAckers.

Canaus records and historical acocounts show thet Abilene's growth accderated following
World War | (Duff 1969; Duff and Sabt 1980), and boomed indie 1920s. Abilene's population
wes 10,274 in 1920; adecade later, it hed risen to 23,175, an increase exceading 110 percent.
Abilene wes rapidly becoming a megnet for oil operators who sdected the city as adigtribution
bese because of its drategic location, acoessto trangportation (railroad) and other amenities
including three ingimtions of higher learning and two maor medica facilities.

This large influx of resdents herdded a constmction boom that resulted inthe building of
may new resdentid and commercid buildings. Locd contractors and architects turned to
popular architecmrd trends, epecidly through die popularization of pattern books, to plesse their
dients ad thus boogt budness. These new buildings dso hdped to devdop a sa=e of
permanance and civic pride inthe still new community and fostered promotiond efforts that
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portrayed Abilene as a progressve town widi dynamic people who lived and worked in modem,
new syled buildings.

As areault of this growth, the mod intense devdopment in the district occurred during
the 1920s, as documanted on Sanbormn Fire Insurance Magps from the period. By 1925, 22 of the
31 extant historic properties were ganding.  Still, the eest sde of the 700 block of Besch Strest,
north of Paramore Avenue, ramained undevdoped, as did severd vecat lots. Betwean 1925
and 1929 only one new resdence hed been congtmcted, while another had bean rdocated into the
neighborhood. The latter building, es Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps clearly show, hed afront-
projecting wing widi angled corners, typical of housss built around the mm of die cenmry.
Mechanic's liens reved that U.S. Hamilton moved the house in 1927 from 1442 North 3rd Strest
(Taylor County Mechanic's Liens, Abilene Presarvation Leegue files).

Locd interpretations of bungdow and Prairie Schoo movemeants dominete the
architecmrd character of the district and are among the most common and prevadent desgns
goplied to early 20th century dwdlings in Abilene (Beedey 1979:33-34). Both Syles contrast
sharply to edectic tagtes that prevaled locdly and nationwide during the late 19th and very early
20th cenmries. Unlike Victorian era architecmre and, to a lesser extent, 20di cennmry reviva
architecmre, these housss present a srong horizontal empheas with low pitched roofs, broad
expandve porches, and quared or tgpered columns. They ae more sraightforward in their
desgn, with little of the frivolity or formality that characterized earlier resdences Harmonious
materids and colors that blend with the landscagpe became the preferred aedietic consderations,
in contragt to Victorian era polychromatic brights and 20di cenmry reviva whites. Despite
diminutive front facades, espeddly those of bungdow dwellings, diese buildings generdly prove
to be deceptivdy large and spadious

While many examples of both architecturd expressons were built throughout the city, the
former was condderably more common, possibly because it was dhegpar and eeder to build.
The bungdow movement in Abilene was most common among the rapidly expanding middle
dass and wes popular over along period of time, ranging from the 1910s to the 1930s

The bungdow dwelling, as sean in Abilene and odier locdes across the country, can be
traced to the commissons of Greane and Greane of southern California (McAlester and
McAleser 1986:454). The style ssamed particularly well suited for locd adgptation and
interpretation, and a large number of variants were built throughout Texas ad the ret of the
nation. While some examples may be unique and architect-designed for a specific client,
bungdows generdly were built from plans dissaminated by other means Masscirculated
building journals as well as popular women's megazines uch as die Ladies Home Journd,
widdy publicized bungaow-influenced dwellings. Moreover, Sears, Roebuck and Compary
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cadogs and other smilar companies offered plans and materids to builders and homeowners by
mal nationwide. The advatt of architecrmrd firms that mess produced plans and specifications
further proliferated the syle throughout the nation. Companies such as Ye Planry, which
rdocated about 1914 to Texas from Laos Angdes, Cdifornia, offered a myriad of bunga ow-
ingpired houses A promotiond brochure this company published dates

Ye Favry ... iswha its name implies, A Hace to Gat Building
Fans Ye Favry rapidly ganed areputation for cregting origina
ad atractive desgns for homes and ae aredited in Southern
Califomia as the originators of the Bungdow. Ye Flary were the
first to introduce Sock Flans ad issued the first Bungdow Book
ever published and have continudly increesed its gock of plans,
kegping pece with the demand of modern home builders, and dways a
little aheed with new credtions and conveniences  Ye Planry have
moved their entire Flan Budnessto Texas and will inthe ftimre
meke heedguarters & Ddlas, where we will supply Modern Building
Hans to home builders diroughout the country (Ye Flanry 1914).

While the firm's daim as the "originators of the Bungdow" is dubious a best, this quote reflects
atrend in architecmre and congmction busgnessesthat completdy dhanged the way housss were
desgned ad built inthe United States, and the dwedlings erected in Abilene's constmction boom
of die 1920swere part of this new tradition.

During the 1910s through 1930s the Prairie School became apopular stylistic influence,
ad more affluent citizens generdly dhose houssswith details characteridtic of this architecturd
tradition. With its wide overhangs and drong horizontd empheds, the Prairie Schod syle isa
distinctly American architectural expresson that originated in the Chicago area a die mrn of the
century. It quickly goread throughout the midwestem United Stiates and reeched Texas by the
first decade of this cenmry.  Its popularity wes limited somewhet in time and geographica areg,
ad relatively few pure or acadamic exanples were bulk inthe gate. More often, loca
achitects and contractors sdetted the gyle as abeds for resdentid desgns and subssquently
interpreted it in amore vernacular fashion. Such atrend prevaled in Abilene of the 19205
resulting in the congmction of a large number of dwdlings inspired by Prairie School-styled
traditions. Almost all were built inthe early to mid 1920s

The district's mog affluent resdents favored and built Prairie School-influenced dwelings
from the 1910s through the 1930s  These houses share many common characteridtics with
bungdow and are typicaly 2-gory frame buildingswith brick veneers. The use of cadt done
continuous sills betwean floors ad die incorporation of a porte cochere on Sde devations,
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further reinforce horizonta lines distinguishing Prairie Schod desgn (McAlester and McAlester
1986: 439-451). Other digtinctive Prairie Schod feamresindude low hipped roofs with broad
extendad eaves ad long, linear, 1-dory porcheswith large, squared, brick supports. The most
noteworthy and diginguishing architecmrd dements on Prairie School-influenced dwellingsin
Abilene are tgpered cgps aop the porch columns that ssam compressad from the excessive ad
messve weight of die porch. These cgos gopear on dwdlings that locd contractor Roy
Boawright built. Similarly syled houseswith identica cgos are throughout Abilene, and may e
assodaed with Boatwright; however, more documentation is nesded to support this claim.

Beween 1929 ad die gart of World War |1, three buildings were congmcted widiin die
digtrict: one in 1927 and two in 1941, al Contributing to the district. More recently, three
historic properties have bean razed.  Eunice Parramore resded in the Parramore House until her
degth inthe 1950s  The housewas demalished in 1959, obliterating a historically and
achitecmraly important local landmark.  Aldiough sufficient information is not currently
avalable, the dte may be aile to reved important historica evidence about Parramore and his
family with further investigation. A resdence & 1535 North 8di Strest and a amdl frame house
just eedt of 1542 North 7th Street have d <0 bean torn down. The only examples of new (pog-
1945) congmction inthe digtrict are a 2-unit gpartment complex widi a garage a the southeest
corner of Beach and North 8di dreets and a smdl frame house adjacent to 1542 North 7th Street.
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Verbd Boundary Description:

Beginning & the southeest corner of Lot A, Paramore Subdivison, Block 149, City of
Abilene, thence north dong the eedt boundary line of sad lot, continuing acrass Paramore
Avenue and continuing in a northerly direction until reaching the northesst comer of Lot B,
Parramore Subdivison, Block 149, City of Abilene. Thence west dong sad lot, crossng Besth
Stret, continuing dong the north boundary line of Lot C, Parramore Subdivison, Block 149,
City of Ahilene, continuing across Mulberry Street and continuing for 140 feet dong the north
boundary line of Lot F, Paramore Subdivison, Block 149, City of Abilene, until reaching die
et 9de of an dley. Thence south dong sad dley, crossng Paramore Street, and continuing in
a soudierly direction for 235 feet until reeching the south boundary line of Lot E, Paramore
Subdivison, Block 149, City of Abilene. Thence eet dong sad lot, crossng Mulberry Strest,
continuing aong the south boundary line of Lot D, Paramore Subdivison, Block 149, City of
Abilene, crossng Beath Strest and continuing dong the south boundary line of Lot A, Paramore
Subdivison, Block 149, City of Abilene, until reaching die soudieest comer of sad lot, the place

of beginning.

Boundary Judtification:

The maogt important factors in defining the boundaries of the historic district were: 1) the
visud cohesveness ad integrity of buildings within its confmes, 2) aeshetic featuresdia
diginguish the digtrict from adjoining neighborhoods, and 3) assodaionswidi James H.
Parramore, for whom the digtrict is named.

Property within die higtoric district formed the core of James H. Parramore's homesteed
tract, which encompessed the west half of Block 149, Abilene Townste. Following Parramores
deeth, the land weas partitioned into 9x equdly szed blocks and subssquently desgnated the
Parramore Subdivison. Parramores houseweas demalished in 1959, thereby destroying his mogt
important and tangible link to the area Nonedidess, many of his children developed the land,
heping to presarve the family's strong assodation with the neighborhood.

The mgority of buildings within the district are angle family dwellings consgmcted
bawean 1917 and 1941 ad diglay architecturd feamres assodaed with the Prairie Schod ad
bungdow gyles. This smilarity inuse, age ad desgn reinforces the visud unity of buildings
within die district. Moreover, the ddest and mogt significant resdences share the same
orientation and face onto north-south dregts. The lots ae reatively large, epecidly when
compared to those in adjoining neighborhoods.
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The digtrict is in apredominatdy resdentid area aout four blocks northwest of
Abilenes centrd busnessdistrict. The recently rehabilitated Lamar School and a modern office
building abut the eest boundary of the district and represent the beginning of a commercid area
with mogdly circa 1980s buildings facing Hickory Street, one block et of die district. The ste
of the James H. Paramore House is induded in the district because of its assodaions with
Parramore, who initially owned die entire subdivison, including this now vacart |ot.

Neighborhoods to the south and north are dmog exdusively resdentiad, ddiough their
achitecmrd character contradts sharply to that of the district. The houses ae amdler, less
sgnificant examples of bungdow syle dwelings ad ae on amdl lots. In addition, most have
been moderatdy dtered and thus, do not retain as much of ther integrity as Contributing
buildings inthe district. The only notable exceptions are die resdences a 802 Orange and 802
Mulberry, both of which are 2-gory brick dwellings with Prairie School-influenced detailing.
Although both could be classified as Contributing, neither are within the Parramore Subdivison,
nor do they represent any direct historic assodaions with the devdopment of die Parramore
property. Also, diese buildings could possbly be individudly digiblefor listing in the Nationd
Regider, dierefore, the district boundaries have exduded them.

Propaty immediady to the west of the district is dmogt exclusvely used for commercd
purposes, dthough two bungdow gyle dwellings dand inthis section.  Althoughthis areaisin
the Paramore Subdivison (the wet half of blocks E and F), the intmsion of modern, non-
resdentid buildings destroys this section's historic character.  The two rdatively undtered,
historic (pre-1941) buildings retain their integrity but including them would require
gerrymandering boundaries ad would diminish the overdl sgnificance of the district.
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